
          

 

 

KEYS COVE II 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 28, 2023 
12:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 
Miami, FL 33193 

www.keyscove2cdd.org 
786.303.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



    
AGENDA 

KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Palm Breeze Clubhouse 

1427 SE 24th Place 
Homestead, Florida 33035 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
February 28, 2023 

12:00 p.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. General Election Protocol – Declare Vacancies and Consider Appointment 

D.  Administer Oath of Office and Review Board Member Responsibilities and Duties 

E. Establish Quorum 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Approval of Minutes  

1. December 14, 2022 Special Board Meeting & Public Hearing…………………………………..Page 2 

I. Old Business 

1. Maverick Security Update – Vehicle Decal Registration………………………………………..Page 6 

2. Update Regarding Playground…………………………………………………………………...Page 7 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget……..Page 10 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Election of Officers………………………………………..Page 17 

3. Discussion Regarding Adding Seasonal Flowers 

4. Discussion Regarding the Potential Installation of Lake Fountains 

5. Consider Rate Adjustment – Alvarez Engineers…………………………………………………Page 18 

K. Administrative & Operational Matters 

L. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

M. Adjourn 



���������������	
 ������������������������������	����������

������������ ���������������������! ���

"#$%&''()&*+$�,*-#%&$./0123456�27�829:2�;921<�=/327533�>5?25@�A7�B50C/9C<�DEF�GHGIJKLMNOKP829:2Q;965�RA/7S<FTKNOLU�VUWNXYZ[R\�YB�].\R[̂_�=Ŷ >;8\\Z[X̀ �YB�Za\b\c]�RYd\�[[�RY88eX[Zc;\d\_Y.8\XZ�;[]Z>[RZZ45�=A9C6�Af�]/g5C?23AC3�hS45�i=A9C6ij�Af�S45�b5<3�RA?5�[[�RA::/72S<�;5?51Ag:57S�;23SC2kS�hS45�i;23SC2kSij�@211�4A16�9]g5k291�=A9C6�855S27l�A7�B50C/9C<�GmF�GHGIF�9S�DGnHH�go:o�27�S45�.91:�=C55p5�R1/04A/35�1Ak9S56�9S�DqGE�]\�GqS4�.19k5FaA:53S596F�B1AC269�IIHIroZ45�g/CgA35�Af�S45�]g5k291�=A9C6�855S27l�23�fAC�S45�=A9C6�SA�kA73265C�9ggCA?27l�S45�f23k91�<59C�GHGIsGHGq�gCAgA3560/6l5S�976�97<�AS45C�;23SC2kS�0/327533�@42k4�:9<�kA:5�05fAC5�S45�=A9C6o�̂�kAg<�Af�S45�̂l5769�:9<�05�A0S92756�fCA:�S45;23SC2kSt3�@5032S5�AC�9S�S45�Aff2k53�Af�S45�;23SC2kS�8979l5CF�mEmr�]u�DvrS4�̂?57/5F�]/2S5�GHHF�829:2F�B1AC269�IIDwIF�6/C27l7AC:91�0/327533�4A/C3o�Z45�:55S27l�23�Ag57�SA�S45�g/012k�976�@211�05�kA76/kS56�27�9kkAC697k5�@2S4�S45�gCA?232A73�Af�B1AC26919@�fAC�kA::/72S<�65?51Ag:57S�623SC2kS3o�855S27l3�:9<�05�kA7S27/56�93�fA/76�75k5339C<�SA�9�S2:5�976�g19k5�3g5k2f256�A7S45�C5kAC6oZ45C5�:9<�05�Akk932A73�@457�A75�AC�S@A�]/g5C?23AC3�@211�g9CS2k2g9S5�0<�S515g4A75x�S45C5fAC5F�9�3g59y5C�S515g4A75�@211�05gC5357S�9S�S45�:55S27l�1Ak9S2A7�3A�S49S�]/g5C?23AC3�:9<�05�f/11<�27fAC:56�Af�S45�623k/332A73�S9y27l�g19k5o[7�9kkAC697k5�@2S4�S45�gCA?232A73�Af�S45�̂:5C2k973�@2S4�;2390212S253�̂kSF�97<�g5C3A7�C5z/2C27l�3g5k291�9kkA::A69S2A73�AC�9727S5CgC5S5C�SA�g9CS2k2g9S5�9S�S4535�:55S27l3�34A/16�kA7S9kS�S45�;23SC2kS�8979l5C�9S�hEmvj�IDIQIvvD�976sAC�SA11�fC55�9S�DQmEEQEIEQqwGGF�9S�1593S�35?57�hEj�69<3�gC2AC�SA�S45�69S5�Af�S45�:55S27lo[f�97<�g5C3A7�65k2653�SA�9gg591�97<�65k232A7�:965�@2S4�C53g5kS�SA�97<�:9SS5C�kA73265C56�9S�S423�]g5k291�=A9C6�855S27lF3/k4�g5C3A7�@211�7556�9�C5kAC6�Af�S45�gCAk55627l3�976�3/k4�g5C3A7�:9<�7556�SA�573/C5�S49S�9�?5C09S2:�C5kAC6�Af�S45gCAk55627l3�23�:965�9S�S452C�A@7�5{g5735�976�@42k4�C5kAC6�27k1/653�S45�S53S2:A7<�976�5?2657k5�A7�@42k4�S45�9gg591�2309356o855S27l3�:9<�05�k97k51156�fCA:�S2:5�SA�S2:5�@2S4A/S�96?5CS2356�7AS2k5ob5<3�RA?5�[[�RA::/72S<�;5?51Ag:57S�;23SC2kS@@@oy5<3kA?5Gk66oAClGsDE�GIQEGsHHHHvqvErr8
Page 1



 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  

DECEMBER 14, 2022 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Armando Silva called the December 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Keys 
Cove II Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 12:02 p.m. in the Palm Breeze 
Clubhouse located at 1427 SE 24th Place, Homestead, Florida 33035. 
  
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Special Board Meeting had been published in 
the Miami Daily Business Review on December 5, 2022, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Silva determined that the attendance of Chairperson Melony Fogelstrom, Vice Chairperson Janine 
Ferreiro and Supervisors Cynthia Portillo and Allen Llodra (via conference call) constituted a quorum.  
 
Staff in attendance: District Manager Armando Silva of Special District Services, Inc.; and General 
Counsel Gregory George of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.  
 
Others in attendance: Kevin McIntyre of Maverick Security Services (via conference call). 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Silva requested to have the following discussion item added to the agenda: 
 

 Old Business – Update Regarding South Gate Entrance (Keys Gate Master Association) 
 
The request was acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”). 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  October 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  
 
Mr. Silva presented the minutes of the October 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and asked if there were 
any changes. A motion was made by Ms. Fogelstrom, seconded by Ms. Ferreiro and unanimously passed 
to approve the minutes of the October 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
At approximately 12:35 p.m., Mr. Silva recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public 
Hearing portion of the meeting. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 

Page 2



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Proof of publication was presented that Notice of the Public Hearing on the Gate Facilities Rule had been 
published in the Miami Daily Business Review on November 15, 2022, and the Notice of Rule 
Development on November 16, 2022, as legally required. 
 
 2.  Receive Public Comments on District Rule Pertaining to “Gate Facilities,” Authorizing 
District Management to Deactivate Gate Access Cards, Transponders, & Readers 
 
Mr. Silva opened the public comment portion to receive comments regarding the Gate Facilities Rules. 
There being no comments, Mr. Silva closed the public comment portion of the public hearing.  
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-08 – Adopting a District Rule Pertaining to “Gate 
Facilities,” Authorizing District Management to Deactivate Gate Access Cards, Transponders and 
Readers 
 
Resolution No. 2022-08 was presented, entitled: 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ADOPTING A DISTRICT RULE PERTAINING TO “GATE 
FACILITIES,” AUTHORIZING DISTRICT MANAGEMENT TO 
DEACTIVATE GATE ACCESS CARDS, TRANSPONDERS, AND 
READERS UNTIL SUCH TIME PAST DUE AMOUNTS FOR GATE 
DAMAGE HAVE BEEN PAID TO THE DISTRICT; PROVIDING 
FOR GATE DAMAGE FEES AND COSTS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Silva stated that the document provides for approving and adopting the Gate Facilities Rules which 
would authorize District management to deactivate gate access cards, transponders and readers until past 
due amounts for gate damage have been paid to the District.  A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Fogelstrom, seconded by Ms. Ferreiro and unanimously passed approving 
and adopting Resolution No. 2022-08, as presented. 
 
At approximately 10:13 a.m., Mr. Silva closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Board 
Meeting. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Security Update – Maverick Security 
 
Mr. McIntyre greeted the Board and provided a brief security update.  He stated that he would reconvene 
the distribution of the vehicle registration decals at the start of 2023 and will push to have that finalized 
as soon as possible. Security staff recently went door-to-door distributing flyers to unregistered 
homeowners, but some have still not filled out the vehicle registration forms.  

Page 3



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

He also stated that the parking enforcement officers were waiting for the District to inform them when the 
new towing company had been selected so that they could commence the parking enforcement services 
once again.   
 
Mr. Silva advised Mr. McIntyre that he had been receiving more resident complaints regarding food trucks 
and semi-trucks parking in the District.  Mr. McIntyre stated that the semi-trucks and food trucks were 
parking in private parking spots, so they cannot enforce the parking rules.  The Board asked Mr. George 
if semi-trucks/commercial vehicles could be denied at the gate after which Mr. George responded that the 
District Parking Rules had language prohibiting the aforementioned vehicles from parking on District 
property.  He then stated that the security guards could advise semi-trucks/commercial vehicles that they 
are not allowed to park on District property and will be towed.  
 

2.   Update Regarding Playground 
 
Mr. Silva advised that the permitting process had commenced and that the playground installation 
company was drafting plans to submit to Miami-Dade County.  The Board suggested that Playground 
Rules be established prior to opening the playground after which Mr. Silva stated that he would draft 
playground rules to review with the Board prior to the opening of the playground. 
 
      3.  ADD-ON: Update Regarding South Gate Entrance (Keys Gate Master Association) 
 
Mr. Silva shared the following email from Mr. Ignacio Mendez regarding the south gate entrance: 
 
Hi Armando,   
 
Yes, we are estimating activating gates by Palm Breeze/Cove around mid January.  I sent a 
barcode/decal sheet to all homeowners with the yearly coupon/budget mail out.  Owners and approved 
renters should fill those out with their info, vehicles and barcodes and return to us for processing either 
to our office or send to adminassist2@miamimanagement.com and 
kgcustomers@miamimanagement.com . 
 
After we have confirmed the ownership or approved renter, then we can enter into the ABDI system so 
their barcodes can work at the gatelocated by Palm Breeze/Cove and the CenterGate entry gate. 

Regards,  
 
Ignacio Mendez, CAM 
Senior Property Manager 
On behalf of Keys Gate Community Association 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

  
1. Discussion Regarding Potential Change in Towing Company 

 
Mr. Silva advised that on Halloween, several Specialized Towing trucks entered the community without 
direction from the District and started towing vehicles on their own.  This issue has prompted the District 
to consider looking for an alternative towing company, which would assist with the parking enforcement 
in the District.  The District is awaiting a response from Alpine Towing regarding potentially providing 
the District with towing services and he should have a response by the end of the week.  

Page 4



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 
There were no Administrative or Operational Matters to discuss at this time.  
 
K. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member or Staff closing comments.  
 
L.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, a motion was made by Ms. Portillo, seconded by Ms. 
Fogelstrom and passed unanimously adjourning the Special Board Meeting at 1:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                          Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 5



KEYS COVE II 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

2501A BURNS ROAD 
PALM BEACH GARDENS, FL 33410 

 

 

RE: RESIDENT VEHICLE REGISTRATION FOR DECAL  

 

Dear Resident,  

Please be advised that the Keys Cove II Community Development District (the “District”) has been 
made aware that there are still a vast majority of the residents within the District that have not 
registered their vehicle(s) to the access control system and are still going through the visitor’s 
lane. In an effort to cut down on long queue times at the gate, we will be giving all residents a 
deadline of March 15, 2023 to register their vehicle information into the access control system. 
Failure to register your vehicle by the aforementioned deadline will result in difficulties accessing 
the community due to long wait times at the front gate as you will be asked for ID and will have 
to go through the visitor screening process.  

The vehicle registration form is attached to this letter and must be filled out and returned to your 
respective Homeowners Association (“HOA”) Property Manager. If you are unsure of what HOA 
your property belongs to or who your property manager is, please refer to Exhibit A (District 
Map). Once the Property Manager has received your Vehicle Registration Form, they will enter 
the information into the Access Control System and let you know when the vehicle decal is ready 
to be picked up.  

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at asilva@sdsinc.org or (786)313-
3661. 

 

Regards,  

 

Armando Silva
District Manager
E-mail: asilva@sdsinc.org 
Office: (786)313-3661
Cellular: (786)449-8744

 
 
 

Page 6



KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TOWNS AT SEASCAPE
SEASCAPE POINTE

PALM BREEZE

PALM COVE

PALM COVE

EXHIBIT A

MAP

CONTACT INFORMATION:
>Towns at Seascape, Palm Cove and Palm Breeze
>>Jose Fabregas - josef@property-keepers.com -
(954)586-5111
>Seascape Pointe
>>Jessica Feliciano - JFeliciano@zrsmanagement.com-
(305)230-9660

Page 7



GENERAL INFORMATON 
 
OWNER: _____    PALM COVE: ______   TOWNS AT SEASCAPE: _______   PALM BREEZE: _______ 
 
RENTER: _____ 
 
UNIT ADDRESS: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
OWNER/RENTER INFORMATION 
First Name: ____________________________ 
Last Name:  ____________________________ 
Email: _________________________________ 
Driver’s License: _________________________ 
Phone Number: _________________________   (This will be primary phone number used at the gatehouse.) 
 

 
ADDITIONAL OCCUPANTS 
First Name: ____________________________ First Name: ____________________________ 
Last Name: ____________________________ Last Name: ____________________________ 
Driver’s License: ________________________ Driver’s License: ________________________ 
Phone Number: ________________________ Phone Number: ________________________ 
 
First Name: ____________________________ 
Last Name: ____________________________ 
Driver’s License: ________________________ 
Phone Number: ________________________ 
 

 
PERMANENT VISITORS 
First Name: ____________________________ First Name: ____________________________ 
Last Name: ____________________________ Last Name: ____________________________ 
Driver’s License: ________________________ Driver’s License: ________________________ 
Phone Number: ________________________ Phone Number: ________________________ 
 
First Name: ____________________________ 
Last Name: ____________________________ 
Driver’s License: ________________________ 
Phone Number: ________________________ 
 

 
VEHICLES 
 
License Plate: ____________ Make: ____________ Model: ____________ Year: ____________ Color: ____________ Tag: ____________ 
 
License Plate: ____________ Make: ____________ Model: ____________ Year: ____________ Color: ____________ Tag: ____________ 
 
License Plate: ____________ Make: ____________ Model: ____________ Year: ____________ Color: ____________ Tag: ____________ 
 
License Plate: ____________ Make: ____________ Model: ____________ Year: ____________ Color: ____________ Tag: ____________ 
 
 
 

[Please Email this form to: Josef@Property-Keepers.com] 

Please email this form to: 
>>Residents of Towns at Seascape, Palm Cove and Palm Breeze 
Jose Fabregas - josef@property-keepers.com - (954)586-5111 
>>Residents of Seascape Pointe 
Jessica Feliciano - JFeliciano@zrsmanagement.com- (305)230-9660 

SEASCAPE POINTE:________ 

Page 8



 

Page 9



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE KEYS 
COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Keys Cove II Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 14, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. in 
the Palm Breeze Clubhouse, 1427 SE 24th Place, Homestead, Florida 33035, for the purpose of 
receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 28th day of February, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: KEYS COVE II 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 10



    Keys Cove II 
    Community Development District

    Proposed Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2023/2024

   October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(“DISTRICT”) ELECTING THE OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Keys Cove II Community 
Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-purpose government created and 
existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(6), Florida Statutes, as soon as practicable 
after each election or appointment to the Board, the Board shall organize by electing one (1) of 
its members as chairperson and by electing a secretary, and such other officers as the Board may 
deem necessary. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE KEYS COVE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 

1. The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 

 
    Chairperson 

    Vice Chairperson  

    Secretary/Treasurer 

    Assistant Secretary  

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

   

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and BECOMES EFFECTIVE this 28th day of February, 2023. 

 
 

ATTEST: KEYS COVE II                               
COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
    
   

 
___________________________         
Secretary/Assistant Secretary               Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19


	Keys Cove II Community Development District - February 28, 2023 Special Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	December 14, 2022 Special Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Maverick Security Update – Vehicle Decal Registration
	Update Regarding Playground
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Election of Officers
	Consider Rate Adjustment – Alvarez Engineers




